
From: Hunter, Kathy (UTC)
To: Turcott, Mike (UTC); Young, Betty (UTC)
Subject: Fwd: City of Seattle Terminal 5 Quiet Zone NOI - BNSF Response Letter
Date: Monday, August 9, 2021 7:29:34 AM
Attachments: City of Seattle Terminal 5 QZ NOI BNSF Response Letter 8.6.21.pdf

FYI

---
Sent from Workspace ONE Boxer

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: Semenick, Stephen <Stephen.Semenick@BNSF.com>
Date: August 6, 2021 at 8:19:28 AM PDT
Subject: City of Seattle Terminal 5 Quiet Zone NOI - BNSF Response Letter
To: Tate, Treysea <Treysea.Tate@seattle.gov>
Cc: Baldwin, Kevin William <Kevin.Baldwin@BNSF.com>,Scoma, Kelli
<Kelli.Scoma@BNSF.com>,Stewart, Jeffrey P. (FRA)
<Jeffrey.P.Stewart@dot.gov>,Townlian, Cheryl L <Cheryl.Townlian@bnsf.com>,Cristina,
Paul <Paul.Cristina@BNSF.com>,Hunter, Kathy (UTC) <kathy.hunter@utc.wa.gov>

External Email

Hi Treysea,
 
Please see the attached PDF for BNSF’s comments on the previously submitted NOI for the Terminal
5 Quiet Zone.
 
Thanks,
 

Stephen Semenick, PE
Manager Public Projects – WA, OR, & B.C.
BNSF Railway Company
2454 Occidental Ave S, Suite 1A
Seattle, WA 98134
 
Office: 206.625.6152
Cell: 817.422.2486
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Stephen Semenick, PE BNSF Railway Company 
Manager Public Projects 2454 Occidental Ave S Suite 1A 
WA, OR & B.C. Seattle, WA 98134 


206.625.6152 
Stephen.Semenick@bnsf.com 


August 8, 2021 


Treysea M. Tate 
Associate Civil Engineer – Rail, Freight and Intermodal 
City of Seattle, Department of Transportation 
700 5th Ave, Seattle, WA 98104 


RE:  Notice of Intent to Establish a Railroad Quiet Zone Under 49 CFR 222.43 Quiet Zone: City of 
Seattle Quiet Zone, Terminal 5, NOI Letter - BNSF Response 


Ms. Tate: 


BNSF is in receipt of the City of Seattle’s (“City”) Notice of Intent (“Notice”) dated February 10, 2021 for a 
proposed quiet zone (“Quiet Zone”) as detailed further below.   


At the outset of this letter, BNSF would like to be clear that we believe that if not properly accounted for with 
appropriate safety enhancements, the elimination of the train horn can be detrimental to safety.  BNSF writes 
this comment letter based in part upon requirements set by FRA in the Train Horn Rule ("Rule") at 49 CFR 222. 
The train horn is intended to alert the motoring and pedestrian public of train movement.  The City should use 
the Rule as a minimum guideline in its approach to creating a situation where the train horn is eliminated as a 
safety measure.  For any quiet zone implemented on BNSF-owned track, we strongly recommend each crossing 
receive appropriate enhanced safety devices to accommodate for removal of the horn prior to the establishment 
of the quiet zone. 


The crossings impacted by the proposed Quiet Zone are as follow: 


DOT# Crossing Name RR Milepost Safety Measure 
096202N Chelan Ave SW 182.533 SSM/ pedestrian channelization devices  
096201G PS Terminal Freight 182.449 Closure 
096197U Seattle STL XNG 182.315 SSM/ four quadrant gates 
977570M Private Crossing 182.283 Closure 
977571U Private Crossing 182.199 MUTCD required pavement markings and 


signage 
096199H* Spokane St BR RR Under Grade separated crossing 
095992T* West Seattle BR RR Under Grade separated crossing 
096193S** Private Crossing 182.162 TBD after diagnostic 
096192K** Private Crossing 182.095 TBD after diagnostic 
096191D** Private Crossing 182.059 TBD after diagnostic 


* Please note that DOT numbers 096199H and 05992T are not included within the quiet zone as they are grade
separated crossings in which the horn is not routinely blown.


** Please note that DOT numbers 096193S, 096192K and 096191D are private crossings impacted by the 
proposed quiet zone for which a diagnostic evaluation must be conducted pursuant to 49 CFR 222.25. 
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 49 CFR 222.35 requires that all private crossings within a quiet zone be included. There are three additional 
crossings not included within the City’s Notice impacted by the implementation of a quiet zone before routine 
sounding of the horn would resume under the proposed Quiet Zone. These crossing are as follows: DOT numbers 
096193S, 096192K and 096191D. Pursuant to 49 CFR 222.25, the City must conduct a diagnostic review to 
determine the necessary treatments for these additional three crossings. 
 
BNSF acknowledges and appreciates the City’s efforts to install Supplemental Safety Measures (“SSM”) at the 
public crossings throughout this Quiet Zone. Signage and railroad crossing signal enhancements were discussed 
at the diagnostic meeting. Please ensure these are implemented in accordance with the diagnostic notes and 
ensure that the appropriate vehicular and pedestrian signage is installed per the MUTCD and that the appropriate 
roadway markings are in place including at all driveways affected by the changes proposed by the City. The 
City will be responsible for obtaining any necessary permits and easements for work related to this Quiet Zone 
within BNSF right of way. 
 
Additionally, BNSF recommends installation of chain link fencing throughout the Quiet Zone corridor to reduce 
the risk of pedestrian/vehicular trespassing. Fencing shall be installed at an acceptable distance from the BNSF 
industry tracks to ensure BNSF access and train operations are not impacted. Please note that the City is 
responsible for the cost and maintenance of fencing. 
 
Additional comments for each crossing can be found below: 


• Chelan Ave SW – DOT# 096202N 
o Crossing will be closed to vehicular traffic and repurposed as a pedestrian crossing. 


Existing roadway crossing surface and approach to be removed. First responder access 
will be allowed via removable bollards. Flashing lights and gates, signage, and 
pavements markings shall be installed. Additional fencing installed in the area to 
prevent trespassing adjacent to the crossing. Proposed crossing layout is still under 
review by BNSF to ensure it meets BNSF signal design standards. Modification to 
existing may be necessary upon completion of review. 


• PS Terminal Freight – DOT# 096201G (Private) 
o Permanently closed to all traffic modes including bicycles and pedestrians. Existing 


crossing surface will be removed and access to the BNSF right-of-way will be restricted 
by chain link fencing.  


• Private Crossing – DOT# 096197U 
o Crossing will be converted to public and a four-quadrant gate system and railway-


highway interconnection will be installed. Pedestrian channelization will be installed 
adjacent to the crossing to mitigate risk of trespassing. Design for this location is still 
pending review and approval by BNSF. Signal equipment clearances to be determined 
in each quadrant given the limited property availably between the roadway and industry 
tracks. Please confirm installation of pavement markings and signage are compliant 
with MUTCD requirements. Proposed crossing layout is still under review by BNSF to 
ensure it meets BNSF signal design standards. Modification to existing may be 
necessary upon completion of review. 


• Private Crossing – DOT# 977570M 
o Permanently closed to all traffic modes including bicycles and pedestrians. Existing 


crossing surface will be removed and access to the BNSF right-of-way will be restricted 
by chain link fencing. 


• Private Crossing – DOT# 977571U 
o Please confirm installation of pavement markings and signage are compliant with 


MUTCD requirements. This crossing will remain a private crossing owned by United 
Motor Freight/Riverside Mills. BNSF recommends one-way traffic to access the 
business and a gate west of the entrance to prevent unauthorized access. 


• Private Crossings – DOT #096193S, DOT #096192K and DOT #096191D 
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Please review the requirements and confirm if the safety measures will qualify as an SSM under Appendix A.  
Should the safety measures not meet the SSM requirements under the Rule, the City is required to submit an 
application to FRA for the approval of the ASM and this Quiet Zone.  Any such application should include all 
relevant calculations made by the City with the other information required by the Rule for further review and 
comment by BNSF. The City’s application to FRA for any quiet zone should detail all such specifications, noting 
applicable considerations such as maximum speed requirements applicable to qualification as an SSM or ASM. 
BNSF discourages the use of ASMs, and at a minimum, encourages the use of wayside horns at any location 
where the installation of an SSM which fully complies with the requirements of Appendix A is not possible.  
 
The City will need to enter into a Construction Maintenance Agreement for the Chelan Ave SW, PS Terminal 
Freight – DOT# 096201G, Seattle STL XNG – DOT# 096197U,  Private Crossings – DOT# 977570M, DOT 
#096193S, DOT #096192K and DOT #096191D for any changes required to existing signal systems and for any 
other work required on BNSF’s right of way. 
 
The comments submitted by BNSF herein are provided solely in accordance with the requirements of the Rule, 
and shall in no way be construed or deemed to be an opinion, direction to the City, or approval that the plans and 
specifications or any work performed in pursuit of establishing the Quiet Zone is appropriate for any purpose 
including highway purposes, is structurally sound or appropriate, or that such plans, specifications, or completed 
work meet applicable standards, regulations, laws, statutes, or local ordinances, and/or building codes. No benefits 
to the City or any third party are provided, intended or implied herein. The City shall at all times be solely 
responsible for determining the adequacy of and ensuring compliance with all design elements of the Quiet Zone 
for highway and other public purposes.  
 
In any Notice of Establishment for the implementation of an approved Quiet Zone following application to the 
FRA, the City should certify that the required SSMs and/or ASMs have been constructed and comply with the 
requirements set forth in the Appendices to the Rule. The NOE should also identify the railroad milepost limits of 
the Quiet Zone, which must extend at least 0.25 miles on either side of each public crossing within the Quiet Zone 
(in this case, from 182.065 to 182.783). The City is responsible to ensure all proper advanced warning signage 
(“NO TRAIN HORN”, etc.) and highway speed limit signs are installed and placed at the appropriate location in 
full accordance with current MUTCD requirements. The City, by issuing the NOE, certifies that it has proper 
jurisdiction to establish the Quiet Zone, and that the Quiet Zone meets or exceeds federal requirements. 
 
Please be aware the trains operating in the proposed QZ are within the limits of an advanced technology system 
called Positive Train Control (PTC).  To assist with internal notifications and PTC preparation efforts, BNSF 
respectfully requests 60 days’ advance notice of the planned QZ establishment. This communication can be made 
by email or phone in advance of the NOE mailing. 
 
We look forward to working with you on this effort. If BNSF can be of further assistance, please contact me or 
Paul Cristina, Public Projects Director, 2650 Lou Menk Drive, Fort Worth, TX, 76131, 817-352-1549, 
paul.cristina@bnsf.com 
 
Regards, 
 
 
Stephen Semenick 
Manager Public Projects, BNSF Railway 
 
cc: Jeffrey Stewart 
 Regional Manager, Region 8 
 Federal Railroad Administration 
 500 Broadway, Suite 240 
 Vancouver, WA 98660 
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 FRA Associate Administrator 
 1200 New Jersey Ave, SE 
 Washington, D.C. 20590 
 
 Kathy Hunter 
 Deputy Assistant Director, Transportation Safety 
 Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission 
 1300 S Evergreen Park Dr SW 
 PO Box 47250 
 Olympia, WA 98504 
 
cc via electronic mail: 
Paul Cristina, BNSF Railway; Kelli Scoma, BNSF Railway; Kevin Baldwin, BNSF Railway 
 





		BNSF Railway Company




